
Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission 
1. The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and 

honored one.   
 

2. The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City 
Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in 
Unalaska.  All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning 
principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.  
Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the 
Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.  
 

3. Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  The actions, behavior, and 
comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s 
integrity – but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government. 
 

4. Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective 
body.  As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with 
his and her fellow Planning Commissioners. 
 

5. Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning 
Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that 
disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always 
respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.   
 

6. Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules.  So, 
after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning 
Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority – even if the ruling was counter 
to an individual Commissioner’s position.   
 

7. Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff, 
whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are 
professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public, 
but the City Council. 
 

8. The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the 
Planning Commission.  This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with 
the public regarding applications brought before the Commission.  And, all discussions – pro or 
con – concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within 
Planning Commission meetings.   
 

9. Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism 
and respect for applicants and the general public – regardless of the position held by that 
Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission. 
 

10. Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she 
cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.  



CONDUCTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 
The following is the sequence of events that is followed by the City of Unalaska Planning 
Commission and Platting Board in conducting a Public Hearing before the body. 
 

1. The Public Hearing is opened by the Chair of the Planning Commission/Platting 
Board who reads from the agenda. 

 
2. Any Ex-Parte questions or Commission member involvement are raised. If a 

Commission member(s) is excused, this is the proper time. 
 

3. Presentation by the staff. This is a short summary of the application, explanation 
of any maps, plats, exhibits, and code standards that might apply to the 
application. New written information not in the board packet is provided at this 
time. 

 
4. Presentation by the applicant. The applicant bears the responsibility for making 

the case or argument before the Commission. This is the time for Board members 
to ask questions of the applicant. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant 
should be conducted at this step (Step 4), while the public hearing is still open. 

 
5. Public Testimony. This includes those who are opposed to the application, and 

also the public in general. 
 

6. Rebuttal by the applicant. Final questions of all parties by the Commission. 
 

7. The Chair closes the Public Hearing and Commission deliberations begin. Once 
the hearing is closed, DO NOT REOPEN unless absolutely necessary. Questions 
of staff, the applicant, and the public are acceptable but uninitiated testimony is 
not. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant should be conducted at Step 4, not 
after the public hearing is closed. 

 
8. Commission discusses or debates the application. A motion must be made, with a 

second, and then final discussion. If a motion falls, an amendment(s) could be 
made to further or facilitate Commission final action. After “final action” is taken, 
reconsideration is possible per 8.04.060(G). 

 
 
 

 
DON’T BEND THE RULES FOR ONE, UNLESS YOU CHANGE THE RULES 

FOR ALL. 



CITY OF UNALASKA 

UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

AGENDA/PUBLIC NOTICE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

April 24, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 
The purpose of the meeting will be to consider matters brought to the attention of the Planning Commission & 
Platting Board and will include the following. The typical process for discussing an item is as follows:  

1. Staff presentation,  
2. Applicant presentation,  
3. Public comments,  
4. Motion/discussion/vote.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA  
 
3. APPEARANCE REQUESTS  
 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
5. MINUTES  

 Regular Meeting March 20, 2014  
 
Public Hearing Action Items:  
6.   Consideration of a portion of Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code 

Chapter 8.06 updating the definition of Subdivision and Lease Lot and Chapter 8.08 adding the Requirement to 

Plat. 
 
7.   Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to Zone 2.94 acres, more or less, of State tidelands within Captains 

Bay adjacent to Offshore Systems, Inc. as Developable Tidelands (Owner: State of Alaska; Applicant: City of 

Unalaska; Property ID: N/A) 
 
8.  A 12-Month Extension of the Approval of the Preliminary Plat for Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision – Replat of 

Tract B, Parcel 1-A, and ATS 1353, a 15.24 acre subdivision of Parcel 1-A and Tract B Ptarmigan Flats 
Subdivision, Plat Number 90-5 and Alaska Tideland Survey Number 1353, Plat Number 88-4, Aleutian Island 
Recording District. (Owner: Rick Miller, CEO, Ounalashka Corporation/FDOC, Inc; Applicant: Delta 

Western; Property IDs: 04-03-340, 04-03-345, and 01-10-180)  

 
Regular Meeting:  No Items 

 
Worksession:  No Items 
  
11. OTHER BUSINESS  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 



Chair Help Sheet 

Approval of Minutes Steps: 

1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve.
2. Call for a second to the motion.
3. Commission discussion.
4. Close the Commission discussion.
5. Vote.

Public Hearing Steps: 

1. Open the Public Hearing.
2. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of Interest from

Commissioners.
3. Staff Presentation.
4. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff.
5. Applicant Presentation.
6. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant.
7. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.)
8. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public.
9. Close the Public Hearing.
10. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2014-xx.
11. Call for a second to the motion.
12. Commission discussion.
13. Close the Commission discussion.
14. Vote.



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 

UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Thursday, March 20, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Chris Bobbitt called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 

Staff Present:     
Anthony Grande, Planning Administrator 
Erin Reinders, Planning Director 
 
Roll Call:     
Commissioners present: 

Chris Bobbitt 
Steven Gregory 
Vicki Williams 
Commissioners absent: 

Doanh Tran 
Jessica Earnshaw 

 
2. REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA:  None 

 
3. APPEARANCE REQUESTS:  None 

 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
 

Erin Reinders announced that she heard from the APA Community Planning Assistance Team 
and they are honing on a date.  It looks like they will be here from May 19th – 23rd. She said to 
look out for further announcement anytime soon.  
 
Mrs. Reinders also informed the Commissioners that there would be a Planning Commission 
Meeting on the 24th, which is the 4th Thursday of the month because some Planning Staff will not 
be in town on the 3rd Thursday of April. Mr. Gregory said that he would not be in town on the 
24th.   Mrs. Reinders said that she would send out an email to confirm with everyone and find out 
if there will be a quorum.  

 
5. MINUTES:   
Mr. Gregory moved to approve the minutes from the February 20, 2014 meeting. Ms. Williams 
seconded the motion. Chair Bobbitt called for a discussion or comments on the minutes. There 
being no comments, Chair Bobbitt called for a vote and the motion to approve the minutes was 
unanimous (3-0). The minutes for the February 20, 2014 were adopted. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEMS:   

 

6.  Consideration of amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.06 by adding and 

updating definitions, Chapter 8.08 by clarifying subdivision requirements for lease lots, 



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 
 

Chapter 8.12 by deleting building separation language, adding a conditional use for 

construction camps, and changing submittal deadline requirements.  

 

Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for a disclosure of any ex parte 
communication or conflicts of interest.  Hearing none, the Chair called for staff presentation.   
 
Staff informed the Commissioners that in order to allow for the Commissioners to vote on the 
proposed changes separately, Staff has drafted five different resolutions referencing each of the 
subject areas and placed them on their table.    The resolutions for the proposed changes are 
focused on five distinct topics: construction camps, planned unit developments, lease lots, 
building separation, application deadline. Some of the proposed language had been changed 
based on feedback and would reviewed in detail.  Staff recommends voting on the resolutions 
separately and suggests continuing the dialogue on lease lots with stakeholders. 
 
With regard to construction camps, Staff now proposed that the use be a permitted use in the 
Marine-Related/Industrial and Marine-Dependent/Industrial Districts. In the first draft, 
construction camps were a conditional use in these districts but with this change, its use is now 
by right.  However, Staff is also proposing that construction camps be a conditional use in the 
General Commercial District. Four safeguards, which were discussed in past meeting, remain 
with the conditional use. First, the use must be tied to a project or series of projects. Second, a 
deconstruction plan for the camp must be provided. Third, a removal bond must be provided. 
Fourth, a uniform appearance must be maintained for each building in the camp. For the 
permitted use in industrial districts, a condition has been added stating that any housing in 
industrial areas must be uniform in appearance. 
 
For Planned Unit Developments (PUD), Staff explained that there have been no changes from 
the last presentation and have not received any feedback about the revisions to PUD.  Staff is 
excited with the revision to code, as it encourages creative solutions and master planning for 
development in this unique environment, such as allowing for a mixture of land uses, increased 
densities, and building clustering.  
 
Staff explained the three primary changes to the proposed wording clarifying subdivision 
requirements for lease lots, which have been updated based on feedback and additional 
consideration: 
 The addition of a clear requirement to plat, which is a standard statement in subdivision 

regulation codes, clarifying that subdivisions are to occur by the platting procedure outlined 
in this chapter of code, rather than by deed or lease. Subdivisions for sale or development 
would need to be platted first, which is a requirement in any municipality. It is stated here 
more explicitly as most other municipality’s codes have it and it is written in Alaska’s state 
laws as well. 

 The definition of a “subdivision” is edited so that subdivisions are for the purpose, whether 
immediate or future, of sale or development, “including development associated with a 
property lease”, clarifying that development on lease lots is not exempt from subdivision 
regulation. The definition already refers to development, not only sale, as a purpose of 
subdivisions, but staff feels it is important to make it clear that the types of non-sale 
developments covered under this definition would include those which occur on lease lots. 

 The definition of a “lease lot” is broadened to include not only lots created by lease lines, but 
also lots created by any other means in a lease document. This allows for leases of legally 
recorded lots to fit this definition. 



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 

Staff explained that these changes are important because it is the role of Planning to manage 
development, regardless of the means of conveyance of property rights leading up to it. When 
development applications come to the department, staff will check to see that the lot is legally 
platted first even if the lot for development is a lease lot. It is common city planning practice in 
the United States to enforce subdivision regulations on lease lots, but we are taking a modest 
approach here, only regulating those lease lots that result in development.  

The majority of the feedback from the public has been on this particular issue.  Staff referenced 
written comments at the Commissioners tables from the Ounalashka Corporation with proposed 
alternative wording.  Staff recommended that the Commission defer this portion of the Title 8 
changes to next meeting to allow for more time to discuss this item. 

Staff proposed to remove the references to building separation from Title 8. The Fire Chief 
support this change and is most appropriately handled by building permit reviews conducted by 
the fire chief and the state fire marshal, in addition to advice from the city engineer. The zoning 
code should avoid placing unnecessary restrictions on building separation when qualified experts 
in the city already address the issue. 

Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for Staff.  Chair Bobbitt asked 
Staff if only the lease lot and subdivision changes in Title 8 drew a lot of feedback and the other 
changes have not.  Staff answered that construction camps had some discussions but felt that 
these concerns have been adequately addressed with the revised working discussed tonight. Chair 
Bobbitt asked if the change pertain to adding conditional use in a General Commercial District. 
Staff agreed and added that the previous version had the construction as a conditional use in the 
two industrial districts whereas now the camps are included as by-right use. 

Mr. Gregory asked Staff if changes in the definition of subdivision were made to address 
concerns from the public regarding the minimum lease lot sizes.  Staff answered that has not 
been addressed with the current definition.  Staff went on to explain that a separate conversation 
would  such a change would require a focused discussion just as it was just a couple of years ago 
that Commission voted to reduce the minimum lot size for residential properties. We need make 
sure that lot sizes of Industrial and Commercial Districts because of their nature have enough 
space for setbacks, parking, and other requirements. The possibility also exists for the variance 
or PUD to be utilized when developments can demonstrate that the tests of code are addressed. 

Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any other questions for Staff.  Hearing none, 
he asked anyone from the public who would like testify.  Ms. Nancy Luff asked for clarification 
regarding the removal of the building separation from the code.  Chair Bobbitt explained that it is 
specifically applies to separation of buildings on the same lot and not between lot lines. Chair 
Bobbitt asked anyone else from the public to testify. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt closed public 
testimony.  

Chair Bobbitt called for a motion regarding: 
 Resolution 2014-11, A Resolution recommending approval of a portion of draft City

Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.06 adding

and updating definitions relating to Construction Camps and Chapter 8.12 adding a

zoning designation for Construction Camps.



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 

Mr. Gregory motioned to approve Resolution 2014-11, there was a second. Chair Bobbitt asked 
if there was any discussion needed on Resolution 2014-11.  Mr. Gregory said that he does not 
have comments on this resolution as well as the other three resolutions except for the one on 
lease lot. Chair Bobbitt called for a vote.  The vote was unanimous and the motion carried.

Chair Bobbitt called for a combined motion regarding: 
 Resolution 2014-12, A Resolution recommending approval of a portion of draft City

Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.06 updating

the PUD definition and Chapter 8.12 deleting the subsection about PUDS and replacing

it with a new section for PUD procedures; and

 Resolution  2014-14, A Resolution recommending approval of a portion of draft City

Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.12 striking

building separation language; and

 Resolution 2014-15, A Resolution recommending approval of a portion of draft City

Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.12 changing

submittal deadline requirements.

Mr. Gregory moved to approve Resolutions 2014-12, 2014-14 and 2014-15, there was a second. 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there was any discussion regarding these resolutions.   Hearing none, 
Chair Bobbitt closed the Commission Discussion. Chair Bobbitt called for a vote. The vote was 
unanimous and the motion carried. 

Chair Bobbitt called for a motion regarding: 
 Resolution 2014-13, A Resolution recommending approval of a portion of draft City

Council Ordinance 2014-04 amending Unalaska Municipal Code Chapter 8.06 updating

the definition of subdivision and lease lot and Chapter 8.08 adding the requirement to

plat.

Chair Bobbitt said that the Commission has two options to start the discussion and that is to call 
for a motion to approve the resolution or to call for a motion to continue the discussion in the 
next scheduled meeting. 

Ms. Williams moved to continue the discussion of Resolution 2014-13 to the next scheduled 
meeting. Mr. Gregory seconded the motion. Chair Bobbitt asked if there was any discussion 
needed. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt closed the Commission Discussion. Chair Bobbitt called for 
a vote. The vote was unanimous and the motion carried. 

7. Consideration of a zoning map amendment to rezone Lot 8, Block 8, Haystack Hill

Subdivisions, located at 134 Raven Way, from Single-Family Residential to Moderate 

Density Residential (Owner/Applicant: Travis Swangel; Property ID: 04-09-233) 

Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for a disclosure of any ex parte 
communication or conflicts of interest.  Hearing none, the Chair called for staff presentation.   

Staff presented the background of the application from Travis Swangel, owner of the property in 
question, to rezone the property from Single-Family/Duplex to Moderate Density, which would 
increase the allowed number of units from two to four.  This application is intended to support 
plans to add new dwelling units and renovate one of the buildings on the lot.  The property in 
question is in an area that does not have a single-family character and is predominantly 



Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for the applicant. Chair 
Bobbitt asked if there was any compelling reason for the choice of dimension and size of the 
building. Mr. Zimmerman said the building has to be in that size and dimension in order to fit all 
Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 

institutional uses, including City Hall and the clinic, as well as the chiropractic center. It serves 
as a transitional area between these higher intensity uses and the low intensity housing higher up 
the hill. Therefore, staff found that this is a reasonable location for the Moderate Density district. 
Staff is recommending approval of Mr. Swangel’s application.  

Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for Staff.  Mr. Gregory asked 
what Quasi-Public Zoning means. Staff said The Public/Quasi-Public District is intended to 
provide for public and institutional land uses and structures such as a clinic or city hall. Ms. 
Williams asked up to what point we should start to reconsider changes to the zoning at Haystack 
Hill Subdivision and maintain the character of the neighborhood and maintain the Single-Family 
District designation.  

Chair Bobbitt asked the applicant if he would like to make a presentation.  Mr. Swangel said that 
he was satisfied with Staff’s presentation. He further stated that his plans to put up a triplex 
would not drastically affect the character of the neighborhood.  

Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt called for a 
motion to approve Resolution 2014-08. 

Mr. Gregory moved to approve Resolution 2014-08, there was a second.  Chair Bobbitt asked if 
there was any discussion needed on Resolution 2014-08.  Hearing none, he called for a vote.  
The vote was unanimous and the motion was carried and adopted. 

8. Consideration of a variance request to allow for a 2.5-foot front setback to accommodate

a fish oil processing plant at 146 Gilman Road (Owner: OC; Applicant: Bering Fisheries; 

Property ID: 04-05-390) 

Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte communication or conflicts 
of interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, the Chair called for staff presentation.   

Staff explained that the applicant proposes to construct a new cod liver oil processing plant on 
the lot, adjacent to the existing Bering Fisheries building. The effective functioning of the fish oil 
processing plant requires that it is adjacent to the existing building as shown in the site plan. 
Because of the orientation of the existing building, being a waterfront structure, there is limited 
room available on the side with the proposed new structure.  This variance would allow the 
structure to be within 2.5 feet of the lot line, which is a legal right-of-way.  Staff explained that 
this right-of-way is not used as a street but is intended to be a drainage ditch.  City staff has 
indicated that the structure will not inhibit the use of the ROW as a drainage ditch. Staff is 
recommending approval of the variance request because it meets the tests of code. 

Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for Staff. Hearing none, Chair 
Bobbitt asked the applicant if he would like to make a presentation. 

Mr. Zimmerman, representing the applicant said that Staff did a good job of summarizing the 
intent of their variance application and had nothing further to add  



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 
 

the equipment and processing lines inside. Chair Bobbitt asked if the Commissioners have any 
questions for the applicant. There being no questions, Chair Bobbitt asked anyone from the 
public who would like to speak about this application. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt called for a 
motion to approve Resolution 2014-09. 
 
Mr. Gregory moved approve Resolution 2014-09, there was a second. Chair Bobbitt asked if 
there were any further discussions on the resolution. Hearing none, he called for a vote on 
Resolution 2014-09. The vote was unanimous and the motion carried. 
 
9. Consideration of an amended site plan to a conditional use permit issued in August 2013 

allowing for a new temporary-style bunkhouse at 1829 Ballyhoo Road, the base of the spit. 

(Owner: OC; Applicant: Icicle Seafoods; Property ID: 02-05-150) 

 

Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte communication or conflicts 
of interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, the Chair called for staff presentation.   
 
Staff explained that this was a site plan amendment to a previously approved conditional use 
permit from Icicle Seafoods last August 8, 2013 through Resolution 2013-13 for a temporary 
bunkhouse. The findings and analysis is restricted to the difference between the original 
application and the new one. The original plan was found to have met the three tests of code and 
this review is to determine whether the changes to the plan still meet the tests of code. The site 
plan amendments involve the design element of the building and the location of the building on 
the lot compared to the previous plan that was approved. Staff is recommending approval of the 
amended site plan because it meets the tests of code. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any question for staff. Hearing none, the 
Chair asked if the applicant would like to make a presentation. 
 
Mr. Pugmire said that the changes were minor, such as, from double-stacked to single-stacked 
interconnected bunkhouses that are more user-friendly to the inhabitants. There is also a slight 
change of the location from the previous plan as they are moving it near the dock to be closer in 
proximity to the company’s processing facility.   
 
Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for applicant. There being no 
questions from the Commissioners, Chair Bobbitt asked if the public had any questions for the 
applicant. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt closed the public hearing at this point and called for a 
motion to approve 2014-10.  
 
Mr. Gregory moved to approve Resolution 2014-10, there was a second. Chair Bobbitt asked if 
there were any further discussions on the resolution. Hearing none, he called for a vote on 
Resolution 2013-08. The vote was unanimous and the motion carried. 
 

REGULAR MEETING:  

 

10.  Receipt of Platting Resolution Authority Resolution 2014-07 of the approval of the 

preliminary plat for Hazen Subdivision, a resubdivision of Lot 1, US Survey 5185, P-81014, 

and Lot 1, ARC Subdivision, P-2000-04, Aleutian Islands Recording District, located on 

Steward Road. 

 



Last revised: 4/11/2014 8:24:29 AM 
 

Staff explained that Resolution 2014-07 was an abbreviated plat approved by the Platting 
Authority. A two-lot subdivision that had its existing lot lines repositioned.  

 

 
WORK SESSION: 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS:  None 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Bobbitt adjourned the meeting at 7:52PM. 
 
   
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________ 2014 BY THE CITY OF 
UNALASKA, ALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt Date 
Chair 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Erin Reinders, AICP Date 
Recording Secretary 
 
Prepared by Veronica De Castro and Erin Reinders, Planning Department 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TITLE 8 REVISIONS 

UPDATING THE DEFINITION OF  

SUBDIVISION AND LEASE LOT 



1 

MEMORANDUM TO PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: ERIN REINDERS, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING 

 ANTHONY GRANDE, PLANNING ADMINISTRATOR 

DATE: APRIL 24, 2014 

RE: RESOLUTION 2014-13 
 

 
SUMMARY:  Research, City Staff and Attorney suggestions, Planning Commissioner feedback, and Public 
comments have provided ongoing guidance for developing recommended revisions to Title 8. Staff has drafted the 
proposed revisions to address the concerns and needs of the community as a whole and to meet the goals and 
objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff recommends approval of this Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
in support of the Title 8 changes listed in draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate to lease lots, 
subdivisions and platting requirements.  
 
BACKGROUND:  Code changes involve a public and continual process with multiple opportunities for feedback 
from the public, city officials and professional staff.  During the second half of 2013, planning staff began collecting 
information about necessary changes to Title 8 and conducting research to determine remedies. The changes focused 
on five distinct topics including construction camps, planned unit developments, lease lots, building separation, and 
the application deadline.  Additional changes to these revisions have taken place, and may continue to do so, as a 
result of further feedback and direction from the public, Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
Potential changes were introduced to the Planning Commission at their January 23, 2014 meeting. A public hearing 
was conducted on February 20, 2014 where the Commission voted to continue the discussion to gather more public 
input.   At the request of the Planning Commission, a public mailing was sent to the entire city inviting them to the 
March 20, 2014, continuation of the Title 8 Revisions Public Hearing.  At this March 20, 2014 meeting, the Planning 
Commission voted to recommend the code changes outlined in Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate 
to construction camps, planned unit developments, building separation, and the application deadline to the City 
Council.  Also at this March 20, 2014 meeting, the Planning Commission voted to continue the discussion of the 
changes related to lease lots. 
 
Attached to this memo is the Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 to the City Council, which indicates Planning 
Commission’s support of Title 8 changes, as they relate to lease lots, subdivisions and platting requirements.  Also 
included is the draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04, referenced in Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13, which 
identifies the specific code changes.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Staff proposes to clarify subdivision and platting requirements for lease lots. This includes 
amending the definitions of “subdivision” and “lease lot” as well as adding a section clearly explaining that a 
subdivision of land must follow the platting process. The purpose of subdivision review is to promote orderly growth 
in the community. New subdivisions, relevant to the future pattern of the community, can be created without 
property sales occurring. For example, developments may occur on lease lots. These revisions would clarify that 
developments occurring on lease lots are as relevant to the public interest as any other developments, and thus must 
occur on legally platted lots.  
 
Under consideration by the Planning Commission at the April 24, 2014 meeting are the proposed changes to 
§8.06.020(A)(82) revision to the definition of lease lot,  §8.06.020(A)(157) revision to the definition of subdivision, 
and §8.08.020(E) addition of a requirement to plat.  These three changes are outlined below. 



2 

 
1. The definition of a “lease lot” is to be broadened to include not only lots created by lease lines, but 
also lots created by any other means in a lease document. This allows for leases of legally recorded 
lots to fit this definition. The proposed change is underlined below: 
 
“LEASE LOT” or “LEASE PARCEL” means a parcel or tract of land described and designated by lease lines, 
or otherwise described in a lease document, and which at the time of applying for a building permit or another use 
permit is designated as the tract or parcel of land to be used, developed, or built upon as a unit of land.  For purposes of 
zoning information, setbacks, yards, and other dimensional information, lease lots shall be interpreted as if they were 
actual lots or parcels. 
 
2. The definition of a “subdivision” is to be edited clarifying that developments on lease lots are not 
exempt from subdivision regulation. The definition already refers to development, not only sale, as a 
purpose of subdivisions, but staff feels it is important to make it clear that the types of non-sale 
developments covered under this definition would include those which occur on lease lots. 
Additionally, this proposed definition has been revised since the March 20, 2014 meeting to clarify 
the triggers for what constitutes a subdivision. The need for this clarification was brought to the 
attention of the Planning Department and the Planning Commission by the Ounalashka 
Corporation. The proposed change is underlined below: 

 
“SUBDIVISION” means the division of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, sites, or other divisions, or 
the combining of two or more lots, tracts, or parcels into one lot, tract, or parcel for the purpose, whether immediate or 
future, of sale or development, including development associated with a property lease, including any resubdivision and 
when appropriate to the context, the process of subdividing or the land actually subdivided. No such division of a parcel 
of land into a lease lot or lease property shall constitute a subdivision of land until and unless: (a) the lease term 
(including all extensions to which the lessee is entitled as a matter of contractual right) is equal to or exceeds thirty (30) 
years; or (b) a building or structure requiring a building permit is constructed or sited upon the lease lot or lease parcel. 
 
3. A statement pertaining to the requirement to plat is to be added.  This is a standard statement in 
subdivision regulation codes, clarifying that subdivisions are to occur by the platting procedure 
outlined in this chapter of code, rather than by deed or lease. Subdivisions for sale or development 
would need to be platted first.  This proposed addition is underlined below: 
 
Requirement to plat. All subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the city shall be by plat in compliance with this 
chapter. 
 

The intent of these three changes is to emphasize that the purpose of subdivision regulation is to manage 
development, regardless of the means of conveyance of property rights leading up to it. When development 
applications come to the department, staff will check to see that the lot is legally platted first (which is already done 
for sale parcels), even if the lot for development is a lease lot. It is common city planning practice in the United States 
to enforce subdivision regulations on lease lots; however, we are taking a modest approach here and only regulating 
those lease lots that result in development.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Although changes to code are ultimately the decision of the City Council, the Planning 
Commissions provides important recommendations to the City Council to consider regarding Title 8.  The Planning 
Commission may:  
1. Approve Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 recommending code changes identified in the Draft City 

Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate to lease lots, subdivisions and platting requirements, or 
2. Approve the Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 contingent on particular revisions to the code changes 

identified in the Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate to lease lots, subdivisions and platting 
requirements, which would be shared with City Council, or 



3 

3. Continue the Discussion of  Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 and Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-
04 as they relate to lease lots, subdivisions and platting requirements, or 

4. Disapprove Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 and recommend that City Council not approve the code 
changes identified in the Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate to lease lots, subdivisions and 
platting requirements.  

 
LEGAL: The City Attorney has been consulted and the proposed revisions are in keeping with his recommendations.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
supporting the Title 8 revisions identified in City Council Ordinance 2014-04 as they relate to lease lots and 
subdivision requirements.   
 
Attachments: 

1) Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 

2) Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 

3) OC written comments 



Item 6: Title 8 Revisions – Lease Lots (Res. 2014-13)  4.24.2014 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Resolution 2014-13 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A PORTION OF DRAFT CITY 
COUNCIL ORDINANCE 2014-04 AMENDING UNALASKA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 

8.06 UPDATING THE DEFINITION OF SUBDIVISION AND LEASE LOT AND CHAPTER 8.08 
ADDING THE REQUIREMENT TO PLAT 

 
WHEREAS, the city desires to encourage sound, orderly growth within the city limits and to avoid land use 
incompatibilities resulting from uncoordinated development; and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the duties of the Planning Commission is to prepare and to recommend to the City 
Council ordinances, regulations, or other proposals promoting orderly development indicated as desirable by 
the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the potential updates and revisions to Title 8 were introduced and discussed at the January 
23, 2014 Planning Commission meeting and further discussed with a public hearing at the February 20, 
2014 and March 20, 2014 Planning Commission meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed code amendments included in Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 have 
been drafted to address concerns of professional staff members, and have been revised in response to 
input from Planning Commissioners and members of the public, as well as input from the City Attorney; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed code amendments included in the Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-04 have 
been drafted as a result of the recommendations, goals, and objectives identified in the Unalaska 
Comprehensive Plan 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a formal public hearing on April 24, 2014 in order to 
further consider the testimony of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds the code amendments to be reasonable, in the public 
interest, and in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Planning Commission recommends the City of Unalaska 
City Council approves the proposed code amendments, relating to lease lot subdivisions in 
§8.06.020(A)(82), §8.06.020(A)(157), and §8.08.020(E), included in Draft City Council Ordinance 2014-
04, as shown in Attachment A. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF ____________________, 2014, BY THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
___________________________    __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt       Erin Reinders, AICP 
Chair       Recording Secretary 
 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING UNALASKA 
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 8.06 ADDING AND UPDATING DEFINITIONS, CHAPTER 
8.08 CLARIFYING SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS, AND CHAPTER 8.12 DELETING 
BUILDING SEPARATION LANGUAGE, ADDING A ZONING DESIGNATION FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CAMPS, AND CHANGING SUBMITTAL DEADLINE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Unalaska: 
 
Section 1: Form.  This is a Code ordinance. 
 
Section 2: Amendment of CHAPTER 8.06: DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 8.06.020 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 

§ 8.06.020  DEFINITIONS 
 (A) For the purpose of Title 8 UCO, certain terms, words, or phrases used herein 

shall be interpreted as follows: 
  […] 
  (48) “CONSTRUCTION CAMP” means those on-site buildings and/or 

trailers that are temporarily used to house and feed construction workers and/or store project 
construction materials and/or provide office space for contractors and sub-contractors. means 
those temporary structures used to house and feed a variety of workers or for storage of materials 
or office space in connection with (a) the construction, alteration or demolition of a structure or 
vessel, (b) the exploration or support of any mine or oilfield operation, or (c) any other work that 
requires a temporary work force to reside in the city. 

  (82) “LEASE LOT” or “LEASE PARCEL” means a parcel or tract of land 
described and designated by lease lines, or otherwise described in a lease document, and which 
at the time of applying for a building permit or another use permit is designated as the tract or 
parcel of land to be used, developed, or built upon as a unit of land.  For purposes of zoning 
information, setbacks, yards, and other dimensional information, lease lots shall be interpreted as 
if they were actual lots or parcels. 

  (110) “PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)” means a form of 
development, on a property of at least 2 acres, characterized by a unified site design for a number 
of houses, clustering buildings, and providing common open space, density increases, and a mix 
of building types and land uses, the plan for which may not conform to regulations established in 
Title 8 UCO. The PUD may require variances to Chapter 8.08, “Platting and Subdivision,” by 
the Platting Board and/or conditional use permit and/or variance approval by the Planning 
Commission for purposes of Chapter 8.12, “Zoning.”  Any aspects of the development, which do 
not conform to Title 8 UCO and would typically require a platting variance, conditional use 

1 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

permit, or zoning variance, shall be considered an allowable nonconformity upon approval of the 
development as specified in § 8.12.215. 

  (157) “SUBDIVISION” means the division of a tract or parcel of land into 
two or more lots, sites, or other divisions, or the combining of two or more lots, tracts, or parcels 
into one lot, tract, or parcel for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale or 
development, including development associated with a property lease, including any 
resubdivision and when appropriate to the context, the process of subdividing or the land actually 
subdivided. No such division of a parcel of land into a lease lot or lease property shall constitute 
a subdivision of land until and unless: (a) the lease term (including all extensions to which the 
lessee is entitled as a matter of contractual right) is equal to or exceeds thirty (30) years; or (b) a 
building or structure requiring a building permit is constructed or sited upon the lease lot or lease 
parcel. 

  (161) “TEMPORARY” means those structures, which, based on their 
design elements, are not reasonably expected to be productive for more than 30 years, or are 
designed to be moved or dismantled. The Director of Planning shall have the discretion in 
determining whether a structure fits this definition and may consider the anticipated use of the 
structure and its surroundings. 

  [subsections 161 through 172 shall be renumbered 162 through 173] 
 
Section 3: Amendment of CHAPTER 8.08: PLATTING AND SUBDIVISION 
 
Section 8.08.020 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 

§ 8.08.020 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
[…] 
(E) Requirement to plat. All subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the city shall be 
by plat in compliance with this chapter. 
[subsections E through J shall be renamed F through K] 

 
Section 4: Amendment of CHAPTER 8.12: ZONING 
 
Section 8.12.040 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 

§ 8.12.040 SINGLE-FAMILY/DUPLEX RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (L) Special provisions for multiple buildings on a lot. 
  (1) More than one building may be placed on a lot. Each building shall be 
considered as one building for the purpose of front, side, and rear yard requirements. 
  (2) Access between buildings. Buildings or structures arranged so that vehicular 
access driveways separate them shall not have less than 30 feet between the buildings or 
structures so arranged. 
 [subsections M through O shall be renamed L through N] 
 

2 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

Section 8.12.050 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.050 MODERATE-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (K) Special provisions for multiple buildings on a lot. 
  (1) More than one building may be placed on a lot. Each building shall be 
considered as one building for the purpose of front, side, and rear yard requirements. 
  (2) Access between buildings. Buildings or structures arranged so that vehicular 
access driveways separate them shall not have less than 30 feet between the buildings or 
structures so arranged. 
 [subsections L through N shall be renamed K through M] 
 
Section 8.12.060 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.060 HIGH-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (K) Special provisions for multiple buildings on a lot. 
  (1) More than one building may be placed on a lot. Each building shall be 
considered as one building for the purpose of front, side, and rear yard requirements. 
  (2) Access between buildings. Buildings or structures arranged so that vehicular 
access driveways separate them shall not have less than 30 feet between the buildings or 
structures so arranged. 
 [subsections L through N shall be renamed K through M] 
 
Section 8.12.070 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.070 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (D) Conditional uses and structures. In the General Commercial District, the following 
uses and their accessory uses may be permitted, subject to securing a Conditional Use approval 
in each case as provided for in this chapter (See § 8.12.200): 
  […] 
  (6) Bulk chemical and petroleum storage and sales; 
  (7) Construction camps, provided the following safeguards are addressed, in 
addition to other conditions that the Planning Commission finds necessary as they relate to the 
specific request: 
   (a) the use is tied to a specific project or projects and is discontinued 
following the completion of that project or projects; and  

(b) a detailed plan for deconstruction and removal is be provided; and 
   (c) the applicant provides proof of a bond in an amount, deemed by the 
Planning Commission to be sufficient to ensure removal of the structure upon project 
completion; and 

3 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

   (d) the appearance of each structure, comprising the construction camp, is 
substantially uniform. 
  [subsections 7 through 20 shall be renumbered 8 through 21] 
 
Section 8.12.080 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.080 MARINE-RELATED/INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (B) Uses permitted. In the Marine-Dependent/Industrial District, no building or structure 
or land shall be used, and no building or structure shall be erected which is arranged, intended, or 
designated to be used for other than one or more of the following uses: 
  […] 
  (10) Construction camps; 
  [subsections 10 through 24 shall be renumbered 11 through 25] 
 […] 
 (J) Special provisions. The following special provisions apply to all land uses within the 
Marine-Related/Industrial District: 
  […] 
  (6) All housing is subject to the condition that the appearance of each structure is 
substantially uniform. 
 […] 
 
Section 8.12.090 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.090 MARINE-DEPENDENT/INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 
 […] 
 (B) Uses permitted. In the Marine-Dependent/Industrial District, no building or structure 
or land shall be used, and no building or structure shall be erected which is arranged, intended, or 
designated to be used for other than one or more of the following uses: 
  […] 
  (8) Construction camps; 
  [subsections 8 through 11 shall be renumbered 9 through 12] 
 […] 
 (J) Special provisions. The following special provisions apply to all land uses within the 
Marine-Related/Industrial District: 
  […] 
  (6) All housing is subject to the condition that the appearance of each structure is 
substantially uniform. 
 […] 
 
Section 8.12.170 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.170 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

 […] 
 (J) Planned unit developments. A developer may request exceptions from portions of this 
chapter in the case of a planned unit development.  Application for any such exception shall be 
made in writing by the developer before or at the time the proposed development is submitted to 
the Department of Planning.  The request for planned unit development shall be supplemented 
with maps, plans, or other data which may aid in the analysis of the proposed project.  When an 
application for a planned unit development is complete, the request will be treated as application 
for conditional use permit(s) and/or variance request(s) and will be heard in public hearing(s) 
before the Commission. 
 [subsections K through Q shall be renamed J through P] 
 
Section 8.12.190 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.190 AMENDMENTS 
 […] 
 (B)(2) Submittal/timing 
  (a) The application must be received at least 15 22 days prior to the next regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 […] 
 
Section 8.12.200 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.200 CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATIONS 
 […] 
 (A)(2) Submittal/timing 
  (a) The application must be received at least 15 22 days prior to the next regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 […] 
 
Section 8.12.210 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby amended with the following 
revisions: [additions are underlined; deletions are overstruck] 
 
 § 8.12.210 VARIANCES 
 […] 
 (B)(2) Submittal/timing 
  (a) The application must be received at least 15 22 days prior to the next regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 […] 
 
Section 8.12.215 of the Unalaska Municipal Code is hereby added as follows: 
 
 § 8.12.215 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 

(A) Procedure. A developer may apply for approval of a planned unit development from 
the Planning Commission, granting exemption from portions of this chapter for large 

5 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

scale developments. The procedure for taking action on a planned unit development 
application shall be as follows: 

  (1) Written application. A written application for a planned unit development 
approval shall be filed with the Department of Planning on forms prescribed by the Department. 
Upon filing an application for a planned unit development approval with the Department of 
Planning by a landowner or his/her authorized agent, the applicant shall be informed of the time 
and place of the next regular meeting at which the application will be considered. 
  (2) Submittal/timing. 
   (a) The application must be received at least 22 days prior to the next 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission.  
   (b)  The application will not be scheduled for a public hearing unless the 
Department of Planning, following  an examination of the City of Unalaska Real Property Tax 
Roll, determines the person signing as landowner(s) on the application form are in fact the latest 
owner(s) of record. 
 (B) Public Hearing. The Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing on 
the application. Notice of the Public Hearing shall be given not less than 10 days prior to the 
public hearing in the following manner: 
  (1) The Department of Planning will mail notice of public hearing to all 
landowners of record within 300 feet of the proposed planned unit development as shown on the 
City of Unalaska Real Property Tax Roll; and 
  (2) The Department of Planning will post at least two copies of this notice, printed 
or written, in a conspicuous place not less than 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. 
 (C) Findings. At public hearing, the Planning Commission shall determine if any 
application for a planned unit development: 
  (1) Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Development Plan; 
  (2) Will be compatible with the existing and planned land uses in the surrounding 
neighborhood and with the intent of its zoning district; and 
  (3) Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than 
anticipated from permitted development within the zoning district. 
 (D) Action of the Planning Commission. 
  (1) The Planning Commission shall make its decision concerning a planned unit 
development application within 30 days after the first public hearing on the application, unless 
the hearing is continued. 
  (2) In rendering its decision, the Planning Commission may apply specific site or 
development conditions as additional safeguards or controls to ensure compatibility with 
surrounding land use and protection of the public. Such approval will be specifically tied to the 
site plan submitted with the application, unless otherwise modified and noted by the Planning 
Commission. 
  (3) The Planning Commission shall cause written notification of its action to be 
mailed to the applicant within 10 days after the decision has been rendered. Its decision shall be 
final unless appealed to the City Council. 
 (E) Appeals. A person aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Commission may make 
written request for a hearing before the City Council to appeal such decision.  For purposes of 
this subsection, an aggrieved person means an applicant or landowner within the area involved or 
within 300 feet of the exterior boundaries of the area involved.  Such request shall contain 
reference to the specific decision appealed and shall be delivered to the City Clerk within 10 

6 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

working days from such ruling.  Upon receipt of any such request, the City Council will set a 
date for a public hearing to consider the Planning Commission's decision and objections thereto.  
Notice of the Public Hearing shall be given not less than 10 days prior to the public hearing in 
the following manner 
  (1) The Department of Planning will mail the notice of public hearing to all 
landowners of record within 300 feet of the proposed planned unit development as shown on the 
City of Unalaska Real Property Tax Roll; and 
  (2) The City Clerk will post at least two copies of this notice, printed or written, in 
a conspicuous place not less than 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. 
 (F) Action of the City Council. At the public hearing, the City Council may uphold the 
action of the Planning Commission, reverse the action of the Planning Commission, or modify 
the action of the Planning Commission. 
 (G) Decision of the City Council. The City Council shall provide findings of fact and 
conclusions of law in accordance with its decision on appeal.  These findings of fact and 
conclusions of law shall be issued within 15 working days after the final hearing on appeal.  The 
decision of the City Council shall become final and effective immediately upon the issuance of 
the findings of fact and conclusions of law.  No permits shall be issued concerning the property 
in question until the decision becomes final.  A decision of the City Council may be appealed to 
the Superior Court within 30 days after the decision becomes final. 
 (H) Reapplication. No request for a planned unit development shall be considered by the 
Planning Commission within the 12-month period immediately following a previous denial of 
such request, except that the Director of Planning may consent to a new hearing, if in the opinion 
of the Director of Planning new evidence or a change of circumstances warrant it. 
 (I) Time Limit. Each planned unit development authorized under the provisions of this 
Chapter which is not actually established or for which the actual construction commenced on the 
buildings or structures involved within one year from the date of the decision of the Planning 
Commission, will be null and void.  In the event construction work is involved, it must actually 
commence within the stated period and must be diligently pursued to completion. 
 

 
Section 5: Effective Date. This ordinance is effective June 1, 2014. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE UNALASKA 
CITY COUNCIL THIS _________ DAY OF _______________, 20__. 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
     HON. SHIRLEY MARQUARDT 
     MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 

7 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 



Attachment A: Planning Commission Resolution 2014-13 
 

__________________, CITY CLERK 
 

8 City Council Ordinance 2014-04: Amending Title 8 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Zoning Map Amendment  

State Tidelands at Captains Bay 

 



Item 7: Captains Bay Tideland Zone Amendment (Res. 2014-16)                               4.24.2014 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Staff Report 
 

A RESOLUTION TO THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE 
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO ZONE A 2.94-ACRE PORTION, MORE OR LESS, OF 

CURRENTLY UN-SURVEYED TIDELANDS IN CAPTAINS BAY THAT THE CITY OF UNALASKA 
HAS REQUESTED TO ACQUIRE FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA, LOCATED WITHIN THE 

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA 
  

Project Information 
Land Owner State of Alaska 
Applicant City of Unalaska 
Location  Captains Bay, near OSI 
Property Identification n/a 
Application Type Zoning Map Amendment 
Project Description This is the tideland that is the City of Unalaska has request to acquire form 

the state of Alaska.  Property is required to be zoned so that it will 
accommodate the development associated with the request. 

Zoning  Existing: Unzoned / Proposed: Developable Tideland 
Exhibits Draft Resolution 2014-16, Application Submittal to the State (Signed 

Resolutions, Plat, Map) 
Staff Recommendation Approval of Resolution 2014-16 
 
PLAN GUIDANCE 
The primary Economic Development Goal identified in the Comprehensive Plan is to, “Ensure a thriving and 
sustainable local economy.” Several related actions items are identified in the Comprehensive Plan, which 
include: 
1. Make land available for business and industry;  
2. Broaden and diversify the local economy; and 
3. Pursue pertinent global economic opportunities that might further local economic diversification or local 

economic expansion.  
 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
1. According to UCO §8.12.140(A), the Developable Tidelands District is intended to provide guidelines and 

restrictions for those tide and submerged lands that have been identified as developable. 
2. UCO Section 8.12.190 outlines the zoning amendments process including the following: 

• Boundaries of zoning districts established by this chapter and as shown on the Zoning Map, text in this 
chapter may be amended, reclassified, or altered whenever required by public necessity and convenience 
and general welfare. 

• The Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing on the application. At the public hearing, 
the Planning Commission shall determine if any application for a zone change is reasonable, in the public 
interest, and in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, and make 
recommendations to the City Council. 

• Upon receipt of the recommendation, the City Council shall set the date for a public hearing.  At that 
public hearing, the City Council may accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission, reject the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission, or approve a modification to the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission. 

 
 

1 
 



Item 7: Captains Bay Tideland Zone Amendment (Res. 2014-16)                               4.24.2014 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
After receiving Planning Commission (Resolution 2014-04) support on January 23, 2014 and the City Council 
(Resolution 2014-20) support on February 11, 2014, Staff submitted an application to the State requesting the 
acquisition of approximately 2.94 acres of additional tidelands in Captains Bay to accommodate existing facilities 
and future expansion of industrial uses. To review, the northern portion of the requested tidelands is attributed to 
the existing facilities owned by Offshore Systems, Inc. that extend beyond existing platted tidelands (ATS 1431 
Tract A). The southern portion of the request is attributed to the proposed development from Offshore Systems, 
Inc. for a warehouse and dock facility that will extend beyond existing platted tidelands (UTS 103 Tract A-1). 
 
Feedback from the DNR’s Municipal Entitlement Unit has indicated that before such our acquisition request will 
be considered, the property in question would need to be zoned to accommodate development and that such 
development would need to have been approved by the City.  Because of this, City Staff proposes that the area 
being requested from the State be zoned to as Developable Tidelands.  From the City’s perspective, the zoning of 
the property is the first step in allowing for a building permit application, once it is received, to be considered for 
approval.  An approval of a building permit application for this area shows the City’s approval of the development 
itself.  Again, the City will also need to coordinate with the State of Alaska Survey Department and arrange for a 
professional land surveyor to conduct tideland surveys of this area. The preliminary tideland surveys will be 
brought to both the Platting Board and the State for review before they are finalized and recorded.  
 
FINDINGS 
The purpose of the zoning map amendment is to allow for zoning of certain properties to be amended in order to 
accommodate the needs of the community. The Planning Commission is to approve the request when it finds that 
the request is 1) reasonable; 2) in the public interest; and 3) in conformance with the goals and objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Staff finds that the rezoning meets this standard, as follows: 
1. The proposed zoning is reasonable because it promotes a land use that matches the character of its 

surroundings, would not cause any particular burdens on the surrounding areas, and would not unreasonably 
interfere with navigation or public access.   

2. The proposed zoning is in the public interest because this area is currently not zoned and assigning a zoning 
district provides development parameters for existing facilities and future expansion of industrial uses in a 
location.  

3. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan adopted by the City of Unalaska as it 
expands economic opportunities and provides more property for increased economic production within the 
community. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.12 (Zoning), the City 
of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the City’s Developmental Review team, recommends that 
the Planning Commission recommend approval to the City Council of this zoning map amendment by approving 
Resolution 2014-16.  

 

2 
 



Item 7: Captains Bay Tideland Zone Amendment (Res. 2014-08)  4.16.2014 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Resolution 2014-08 
 

A RESOLUTION TO THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT TO ZONE A 2.94-ACRE PORTION, MORE OR LESS, OF CURRENTLY UN-SURVEYED TIDELANDS 

IN CAPTAINS BAY THAT THE CITY OF UNALASKA HAS REQUESTED TO ACQUIRE FROM THE STATE OF 
ALASKA, LOCATED WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA 

 
WHEREAS, UCO §8.12.190 sets forth the procedures for the taking action on a zoning map amendment application; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alaska Statute 38.05.825 describes the requirements for a municipality applying for tidelands from the State of Alaska; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has requested to acquire  2.94-acre portion, more or less, of currently unsurveyed State waters 
within Captains Bay to existing and proposed development related to Offshore Systems, Inc; and 
 
WHEREAS, the tidelands are being requested from the State of Alaska for conveyance to the City of Unalaska are currently unzoned 
and feedback from the Department of Natural Resources Municipal Entitlement Unit has indicated that the requested area must be 
zoned to accommodate development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the requested tidelands are developable, with a portion currently containing development, the Planning Department 
proposes a zone map amendment to classify the tidelands within the area to be acquired from the State of Alaska as Developable 
Tidelands; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities and Public Safety have reviewed the zone 
map amendment proposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed zoning is reasonable because it promotes a land use that matches the character of its surroundings, would 
not cause any particular burdens on the surrounding areas, and would not unreasonably interfere with navigation or public access; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed zoning is in the public interest because this area is currently not zoned and assigning a zoning district 
provides development parameters for existing facilities and future expansion of industrial uses in a location; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan adopted by the City of Unalaska as it expands economic 
opportunities and provides more property for increased economic production within the community; and 
  
WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 24, 2014 to consider this request and to hear 
testimony of the public, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the application and finds that the zoning map amendment request is reasonable, in 
the public interest, and in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends to the City Council approval to zone a 2.94-acre 
portion, more or less, of previously unsurveyed State waters within Captains Bay, which the City of Unalaska is currently requesting 
to acquire, to Developable Tidelands.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the secretary of the Planning Commission is to certify a copy of this Resolution and to file it with 
the Unalaska City Clerk no later than fifteen (15) working days from the date shown below. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF ____________________, 2014, BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt, Chair       Erin Reinders, AICP, Secretary  



2/14/2014





2.94± acres within Captains Bay 
Located Entirely Within the Corporate Boundary of the City of Unalaska 

Within Protracted Section 21 of Township 73 South, 
Range 118 West of the Seward Meridian, Alaska 

 
The City of Unalaska (hereinafter referred to as “City”) is requesting a 2.94± acre portion of 
state-owned tidelands from the State of Alaska to accommodate future dock and warehouse 
facility expansion within Captains Bay. These requested tidelands are directly adjacent to 
existing tidelands previously conveyed to the City from the State of Alaska.  
 
This area of Captains Bay contains uplands zoned for industrial development.  Dock facilities 
that currently exist in the area – as well as proposed improvements – are outside existing City-
owned tidelands and are extending into State waters.  
 
This request satisfies the requirements for acquisition of state-owned tidelands in the following 
ways: 
 

• The proposed tidelands are located entirely within the Corporate Boundary of the City of 
Unalaska. 

• Use of the land would not unreasonably interfere with navigation or public access. 
• A signed application from the City’s Mayor and a resolution from the City Council 

approving the action are attached. 
• The land is not subject to a shore fisheries lease under AS 38.05.082. 
• Acquiring the additional tidelands is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan adopted by 

the City of Unalaska as the acquisition allows for further development of various 
industries and projects. This development will help to expand Unalaska’s economic base. 

• Development has been increasing in Captains Bay and there are future plans for dock and 
port facility expansion in that area for support and staging for oil and gas exploration. 

• The tidelands requested are required for the accomplishment of private development 
which will be approved by the City of Unalaska.  The Department of Planning has 
received a site plan from Offshore Systems, Inc. – the lessee of the adjacent tideland 
parcel – detailing a development plan for the requested areas. 

• Portions of dock facilities that currently exist in the area have been built outside existing 
City-owned tidelands and are extending into State waters. Development proposals in this 
area are exceeding the tidelands to which the City previously received patent. 

• If the action is approved, the City will arrange for a professional land surveyor to conduct 
tideland surveys of the area as required by Alaska Statutes. The preliminary tideland 
surveys will be brought back to the Platting Board for review before they are finalized 
and recorded.  Once recorded, the process to zone the newly acquired tidelands would 
then begin. 











Extension of Preliminary Plat Approval 

For Delta Western Subdivision 



Item 8: Extension of Preliminary Plat Approval (Res. 2014-17) 4.24.2014 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Resolution 2014-17 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A 12-MONTH EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY 
PLAT FOR PTARMIGAN FLATS SUBDIVISION, REPLAT OF TRACT B, PARCEL 1-A, AND ATS 1353, A 
15.24 ACRE SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 1-A AND TRACT B PTARMIGAN FLATS SUBDIVISION, PLAT 
NUMBER 90-5 AND ALASKA TIDELAND SURVEY NUMBER 1353, PLAT NUMBER 88-4, ALEUTIAN 

ISLAND RECORDING DISTRICT. 
 

Project Information 
Land Owner Richard Miller, FDOC, Inc 
Applicant Tim Hunter, Delta Western 
Location  Eastside of East Point Road, near the intersection with Delta Way 
Property Identification  Tract B: 04-03-340; Parcel 1-A: 04-03-345; ATS 1353: 01-10-180 
Application Type Extension of Preliminary Plat Approval 
Project Description Reconfiguration of 3 lots on 15.24 acres as well as the dedication and vacation of various 

related easements. 
Zoning Tract B and Parcel 1-A are zoned Marine Dependent/Industrial and ATS 1353 is zoned 

Developable Tideland. 
Exhibits Draft Resolution 2014-17, Signed Resolution 2013-05, Corrected Preliminary Plat of Delta 

Western Subdivision,  and Aerial imagery from GeoBlade 
Staff Recommendation Approval with Conditions as identified in Resolution 2014-17 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this plat is three fold: 
1. To relocate a 10-foot Utility and Drainage Easement that was originally dedicated as part of Plat 2012-9, 

through which a number of easements were dedicated throughout Puffin and Ptarmigan Flats Subdivisions.  
The relocation is needed to accommodate Delta Western development. 

2. To dedicate a new utility easements to be used for electrical and drainage improvements associated with the 
new Delta Western Warehouse. 

3. To refine the property boundary, acreage, and public access easement location to accommodate fill and 2013 
Meanders.  Again, this action is needed to accommodate Delta Western development.  As it currently stands, 
the new Delta Western Warehouse is constructed over existing lot lines. 
 

The Planning Commission/Platting Board approved the Preliminary Plat at their May 16, 2013 meeting.  As of 
August 6, 2013, the numerous corrections identified in the conditions of approval have been successfully 
addressed.  This corrected version of the plat has been included in your packet and what is being commented on 
for the updated conditions of approval.  As the request for extension letter indicates, the Mylar has not yet been 
submitted for signature and recordation because of ongoing discussion related to required easements.  
 
The location, nature and size of these utility improvements and associated easements are directly related to the 
new warehouse, now fully constructed and in use, and the plat currently being considered.  E-4, E-4A and E-6, the 
easements actually being dedicated with this plat, are in keeping with City Code.  Code clearly states there will be 
no compensation if the size and location of the easements and improvements were based on the current proposal, 
as is the case here.  Code talks of compensation only if the size of easements were increased to accommodate 
future growth and development.   
 
The following portions of code detail this information as it relates to subdivision improvements and easements: 
 

1 



Item 8: Extension of Preliminary Plat Approval (Res. 2014-17) 4.24.2014 
 
§ 8.08.100  SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS. 
(B)   Required improvements.  Prior to being granted approval for the final plat, the subdivider shall have installed, or shall have furnished 
an adequate guarantee for the ultimate installation of the following improvements: 

(5)   Oversize utility systems.  The Board, in consultation with the Department of Public Utilities, may require the subdivider to install 
oversize utility systems in order to accommodate probable and desirable growth in the immediate area.  When such oversize systems are 
required, the subdivider shall be reimbursed by the city for the excess costs of providing standard utility lines. 

(6)   Easements.  The subdivider will be required to consult with the Department of Public Utilities for location of easements as they 
relate to existing or proposed public utilities.  In instances where the city determines that providing electric, water or wastewater utility 
service requires the location of electric, water or wastewater equipment and/or main lines on the lots located within the subdivision, the 
subdivider/developer shall be required to grant a utility easement at no charge to the city, appropriate in size, nature and location to 
accommodate the installation and on-going maintenance of the equipment and/or main lines needed to serve the subdivision.  The 
equipment and/or main lines may be used to serve the properties of other utility customers if the service does not change the size, nature or 
location of the equipment and/or main lines, or otherwise create an additional burden upon the property within the subdivision. 

(7)   Drainage.  The subdivider shall consult with the Department of Public Works for location of easements as they relate to existing 
or proposed drainage. In instances where the city determines that an area requires the location of drainage equipment on the lots located 
within the subdivision, the subdivider/developer shall be required to grant a drainage easement at no charge to the city, appropriate in size, 
nature and location to accommodate the installation and on-going maintenance of the equipment needed to provide adequate drainage for 
the subdivision. The subdivider may be responsible for a total surface drainage plan showing all drainage facilities and slopes. Drainage 
easements will be provided whenever the subdivision is traversed by a water course, drainage way, channel, or stream conforming to the 
course of that feature and wide enough to provide access for maintenance and improvement. Consultation with the Department of Public 
Works is advised.  
(C)   Extent of improvements.  All the required improvements shall be installed to the boundaries of the subdivision and shall be designed to 
provide for future extension to and service of contiguous areas. 

 
§ 10.04.035  BASIC CONDITIONS FOR EXTENDING UTILITY SERVICE(S). 
(B)   Easements.  In instances where the City determines that providing electric, water, or wastewater utility service requires the location of 
electric, water, or wastewater equipment and/or main lines on the applicant's property, the applicant shall be required to grant a utility 
easement at no charge to the City, appropriate in size, nature, and location to accommodate the installation and on-going maintenance of 
the equipment and/or main lines needed to serve the subject property. The equipment and/or main lines may be used to serve the properties 
of other consumers if the service does not change the size, nature, or location of the equipment and/or main lines and if it does not 
otherwise create an additional burden upon the burdened subject property. 
 
The overall purpose of planning and our development codes are to encourage sound and orderly growth, for the 
benefit of all members of the community, both now and in the future.  Ideally, this plat would have been recorded 
prior to the building permit and construction of the warehouse and related utility improvements.  This would have 
given the Planning Commission/Platting Board, City Staff, Delta Western and FDOC, Inc. an opportunity to 
discuss the pending development and related utility and drainage needs in a comprehensive and proactive setting.  
In this case, however, construction began prior to the building permit being issued and without respect to existing 
lot lines and we are having these important planning related discussions after construction of a building is 
complete.   
 
FINDING 
UCO Section 8.08.070 states that the approval of a preliminary plat shall be for a period of 12 months, unless an 
extension is requested and granted upon finding that it is in the public interest to do so.  A written request, with 
the owner’s permission, was submitted prior to the approval expiration date of May 16, 2014.  An extension is in 
the public’s interest as the recording of this plat is needed to accommodate development and related utility and 
drainage improvements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The City of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the Development Review Team, have reviewed the 
preliminary plat and considered the extension request in accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and Subdivision). Staff recommends approval of the extension of the 
preliminary plat for Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision, Replat of Tract B, Parcel 1-A, and ATS 1353, with conditions to 
be met with submission of the Final Plat, as outlined on Resolution 2014-17.  
 

2 



RESOLUTION 2014-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION/PLATTING BOARD 
CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
A 12-MONTH EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PTARMIGAN FLATS 

SUBDIVISION – REPLAT OF TRACT B, PARCEL 1-A, AND ATS 1353, A 15.24 ACRE SUBDIVISION OF 
PARCEL 1-A AND TRACT B PTARMIGAN FLATS SUBDIVISION, PLAT NUMBER 90-5 AND ALASKA 

TIDELAND SURVEY NUMBER 1353, PLAT NUMBER 88-4, ALEUTIAN ISLAND RECORDING DISTRICT. 
 
WHEREAS, Title 8 UCO Section 8.08.070 sets forth the procedures for the subdivision and platting and states when the Planning 
Commission/Platting Board shall act as the Platting Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, FDOC, Inc is the owner of Parcel 1-A (04-03-345), Tract B (04-03-340) and ATS 1353 (01-10-180) and these properties 
are leased to Delta Western; and 
 
WHEREAS, FDOC, Inc and Delta Western have submitted a platting application to reconfigure three lots and dedicate and vacate 
utility and drainage easements associated with the Delta Western development;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Platting Board held a public hearing on May 16, 2013 to consider this platting action and to hear 
testimony of the public, City Staff, and the applicant and approved the Preliminary Plat via Resolution 2013-05; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Title 8 UCO Section 8.08.070 (d), approval of a preliminary plat shall be for a period of 12 months, 
unless the associated final plat has been submitted to the Department of Planning for review and approval prior to the deadline; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Platting Authority may grant and extension of the plat approve upon a finding that it is in the public interest to do so 
provided a written request for an extension together with the reasons why an extension is desired is submitted to the Department of 
Planning by the subdivider prior to the deadline; and 
 
WHEREAS, the surveyor, with the permission of the property owner, submitted a written request to extend this approval for 12 
months explaining that all required corrections had been made to the plat and that there were some ongoing discussion related to the 
required easements on the plat; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, Department of Public Works, and Department of Public Utilities staff has 
reviewed the corrected plat and request for extension of approval and believe it is in the public’s best interest to grant such an 
extension; and 
 
WHEREAS, notices were posted and mailed in accordance with Title 8, UCO Section 8.08.020 (F); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Platting Authority held a public hearing on April 24, 2014 to consider the extension of the approval 
of the platting action and to hear testimony of the public, City Staff, and the applicant. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Platting Authority approves extension of the preliminary plat of Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision 
– Replat of Tract B, Parcel 1-A, And ATS 1353, with the conditions to be addressed with the submittal of the final plat: 
1. A closure report shall be submitted. 
2. Electronic versions of the final plat details in formats allowing for incorporation into the City’s CADD and GIS programs shall be 

provided to the Department of Planning at the time of mylar submittal.  
 
This plat approval becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) working days after the Planning Commission action and 
shall remain in effect for one year. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS _______DAY OF ____________________, 2014, BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION/PLATTING BOARD OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
 

___________________________     __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt       Erin Reinders, AICP 
Chair       Recording Secretary 

 





                            ALASKA SURV/TECH            
           LAND SURVEYING AND DEVELOPMENT SINCE 1981 
 
January 28, 2014 
 
W.O. No. 2012-SVY-04 
 
Erin Reinders 
Director of Planning 
City of Unalaska   
P.O. Box 610 
Unalaska, AK. 99685     
 
 
 
 
Re: Request for Time Extension: Final Subdivision; 
          “Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision – Replat of Tract B, 
            Parcel 1-A and ATS 1353”  
 
 
Dear  Erin, 
 
Per our conversations and e-mail correspondence during the past year, 
I would like to request a time extension for the above referenced plat. 
 
I understand the current Final Plat approval will end on May, 16, 2014, 
and after that date all existing Subdivision Plat approvals will  become null and 
void. I further understand that building permits and construction permissions 
were made with the understanding that this plat was to be completed and 
recorded. 
 
I understand I was given permission from The City of Unalaska Department of 
Planning to go to a final mylar back in August 2013. At that time a final mylar was 
not submitted because I had not set the subdivision monuments and discussions 
were still ongoing relative to the status of easements that were required as 
conditions of approval. Conversations have been on going, but to date all parties 
(OC, Delta Western, and City) have not indicated an agreement as to the status 
of the easements as noted on the existing submittals. This plat needs to be 
approved so that the existing (new) building will be located upon the new 
uplands, not partially within the intertidal zone as the original subdivision plat 
would indicate.  
 
I will be planning a trip out in May 2014 to set the final subdivision monuments 
and complete the field activities as required by the City Subdivision requirements, 
as well as make any changes or gather any additional information as needed to 
expedite the completion of this Plat. 
 
 
 



Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision-Replat 
January 29, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hopefully the owners and other interested parties will come to an agreement on 
the issues at hand and indicate to the City Planning Department, the changes 
that need to be made or to suggest those changes they have decided upon if 
any, to make the plat agreeable to all. 
 
 
I will be available by phone or email to discuss any portion of the Subdivision Plat 
and to make those changes necessary to reach a successful completion within 
the new time constraints, should an extension be granted. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Alaska Surv/Tech 
 
Terry P Irwin- (electronic) 
 
Terry P Irwin P.L.S. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PO Box 417 ◦ Newman Lake, WA 99025◦ licensed in Alaska, Washington, Oregon 
                           Phone 509-226-0008 e-mail hillrover@gmail.com 









405 ft

Delta Western Preliminary Plat Location Map

veronica
Callout
Area to be replatted


	Principles of the Planning Commission
	April 24, 2014 Public Agenda
	March 20, 2014 Meeting Minutes
	Continuation of Title 8 Revisions - Updating Definition fo Subdivision & Lease Lot
	Staff Report
	Resolution 2014-13
	Draft Ordinance No. 2014-04
	OC Feedback on Title 8 Revisions

	Zoning Map Amendment
	Staff Report
	Resolution 2014-08
	Application for State Tidelands Lease
	City Council Resolution 2014-20 Approving Acquisition of 2.94-Acre portion of State Tidelands in Captains Bay

	Delta Western Application for Extension of Preliminary Plat Approval
	Staff Report
	Resolution 2014-17
	Application for Extension
	Resolution 2013-05 Approving Preliminary Plat of Delta Western Subdivision
	Location Map




